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South Plainfield Board of Education
Administration Building
125 Jackson Avenue
South Plainfield, NJ 07080
Telephone: 908.754.4620

Fax: 908.822.2848 Fax: 908.822.2453 Fax: 908.822.2516
Mrs. Nicole Pormilli Dy, Stephen H. Genco Mpy. James Olobardi
Assistant Superintendent Superintendent of Schools Business Administrator/

Board Secretary

Members of the Board of Education
South Plainfield School District
County of Middlesex, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) of the South Plainfield School District
(District) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the
accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures,
rests with the management of the Board of Education (Board). To the best of our knowledge and
belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a
manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various
funds of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of
the District's financial activities have been included.

The District has implemented Statement No. 34 of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) entitled Basic Financial Statements — and Management's Discussion and
Analysis — for State and Local Governments. This standard, issued in June 1999, creates a new
reporting model of financial information and disclosure, which represents a significant departure
from the previously used reporting model. The reader will notice that the two main basic
financial statements created by this standard, the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities, do not contain numerous columns for various funds that have been seen in past
governmental financial statements. These two financial statements consolidate much of the
detailed information contained in fund based financial statements of the South Plainfield School
District.

Also required as part of “Required Supplementary Information” by GASB Statement No. 34 is a
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis” (MD&A) which allows the District to explain in
layman’s terms its financial position and results of operations of the past fiscal year.

|
October 29, 2013
Honorable President and
The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial,
statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District's
organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the basic
financial statements and schedules, Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A),
supplemental information, the combining of individual schedules as well as the auditor's report
thereon. The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information,
generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District is required to undergo an annual single
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audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act, as amended, and the U.S. Office
of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit
Organizations, and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of
Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Information related to this single audit, including
the auditor's report on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and findings and recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this
report.

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) requires that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The MD&A of South
Plainfield School District can be found immediately following the report of the independent
auditors.

1. Reporting Entity and its Services: South Plainfield School District is an independent
reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the GASB as established by GASB
Statement No. 14. All funds of the District are included in this report. The South
Plainficld Board of Education and all its schools constitute the District's reporting entity.
The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels K
through 12. These include regular, vocational, limited English-proficient, as well as
special education for educationally handicapped youngsters.

The District operated the 2012-2013 fiscal year with an enrollment of 3,558.0 students,
which is 1.96% less students than the previous year's enrollment. The following details the
changes in the student enroliment of the district over the last ten vears.

Average Daily Enrollment

Fiscal Year Student Enrollment Percent Change
2012-2013 3,558.0 <1.96%>
2011-2012 3,629.0 <2.26%0>
2010-2011 3,713.0 <0.70%%>
2009-2010 3,739.0 91%
2008-2009 3,705.4 <0.43%>
2007-2008 3,721.3 <2.00%>
2006-2007 3,797.2 ' 0.02%
2005-20006 3,791.3 <1.36%>
2004-2005 3,843.5 0.34%
2003-2004 3,830.6 0.78%

2. Economic Condition and Qutlock: South Plainfield’s economy benefits from its
location as a convenient commutation point to major employment centers, including
New York City. The economy mirrors the national economy that is reportedly
ending a recession but has not yet recovered.

3. Internal Accounting Controls: Management of the District is responsible for establishing
and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the
District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data
arc compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principals (GAAP). The internal control structure is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that recognizes: (1) the cost of
a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs
and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.
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As recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for
ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is
also subject to periodic evaluation by the District management.

As part of the District’s single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the
adequacy of the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state
financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with
applicable laws and regulations.

Budgetary Controls: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains
budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with
legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the
municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special
revenue fund and the debt service fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital
improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as
amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments
on a line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as
reappropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be
reappropriated are reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2013,

Accounting System and Reports: The District's accounting records reflect generally
accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). The District had implemented GASB No. 34 for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2006 as explained in the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

Debt Administration: The Board of Education issued bonds to pay for the school district’s
capital project. The proposal was approved by the voters at the April 17, 2001 school
election for a total of $19,283,380.00 The State’s share of the project was $6,647,000, and
the local share of the project was $12,636,380.00. The project included the building of a
new elementary school; expansion of Grant School to include grades 5 and 6; and two (2)
contracts for electrical and technology upgrades. On August 14, 2009 the Board of
Education sold and issued $9,765,000 Refunding School Bonds resulting in a savings of
$341,112. As of June 30, 2013, the outstanding principal was $9,040,000 — bonds.

Cash Management: The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state
statute as detailed in the "Notes to Basic Financial Statements”, Note 2. The District has
adopted a cash management plan which requires it to deposit its funds in public
depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit
Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units
from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The law
requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in
New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

Risk Management: The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited
to general Hability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft
insurance on property and contents, and fidelity bonds.

Other Information:

Independent Audit: State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public
accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Lerch, Vinci and
Higgins, LLP, was selected by the Board. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth
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in state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit
Act, as amended, and the related OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-
04. The auditor's report of the CAFR is included in the financial section of this report. The
auditor’s reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit
section of this report.

10.  Acknowledgments:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the South Plainfield School
Board for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of
the school district and thereby contributing their full support to the development and
maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation of this report could not have been
accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our administrative office

staff.
Respectfully submitted,
Ztephen H. Genco, EA.D. Jameés Olobardi |
Superintendent of Schools School Business Administrator/ |

Board Secretary
|
|
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Trustees

South Plainfield Board of Education

South Plainfield, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the South Plainfield Board of Education as of and for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Board of Education’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New
Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

17-17 ROUTE 208 # FAIR LAWN, NJ 07410 « TELEPHONE (201) 791-7100 « FACSIMILE (201) 791-3035
WWW.LVHCPA.COM
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our optnion, the financial staterments referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the South Plainfield Board of Education as of June 30, 2013, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and apalysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the South Plainfield Board of Education’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining fund
financial statements, financial schedules, statistical section, schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required
by U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments. and Non-
Profit Organizations and schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance as required by New Jersey OMB
Circular 04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants. State Grants and State Aid, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements of the South Plainfield
Board of Education.

The combining fund financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards and schedule of expenditures
of state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with anditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the combining fund financial statements, schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial
assistance are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section, financial schedules and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.




Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 29, 2013 on our
consideration of the South Plainfield Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters, The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the South Plainfield Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

L&‘RC Ln(jf;.?c'\ ﬁ Hf‘gglroi, L L P |
LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP

Certified Public Accountants

Public Scho gAccountagt\s
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Public School Accountant
PSA Number CS00932
Fair Lawn, New Jersey
October 29, 2013



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2013

INTRODUCTION

This section of South Plainfield Board of Education’s annual financial report presents our
discussion and analysis of the School District’s financial performance during the fiscal year that
ended on June 30, 2013, Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal {efter at the front of
this report and the School District’s financial statements, which immediately follows this section.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary
Information specified in the Governmental Accounting Standard Board’s (GASB) Statement No.
34 — Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and
Local Governments. Certain comparative information between the current year (2012-2013) and
the prior year (2011-2012) is required to be presented in the MD&A.

The discussion and analysis of the School District’s financial performance provides an overall
review of the School District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, The
intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the School District’s financial performance as a
whole: readers should also review the notes to the financial statements and financial statements o
enhance their understanding of the School District’s financial performance.

USING THIS COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (CAFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements as well as notes to those statements.
These statements are organized so that the reader can understand the South Plainfield Board of
Education as a financial whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to
provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial activities.

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the
activities of the whole School District, presenting both an aggregate view of the School District’s
finances and a longer-term view of those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next
level of detail. For governmental funds, these statements tell how services were financed in the
short-term as well as what remains for future spending. In the case of the South Plainfield Board
of Education, the General Fund is by far the most significant fund.

REPORTING THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the School District to provide
programs and activities, the view of the School District as a whole looks at all financial
transactions and asks the question, “How did we do financially during 20137 The Statement of
Net Position and Statement of Activities help answer this question. These Statements include all
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflow of resources using the
accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies.
This basis of accounting takes into account all of the current year’s revenues and expenses
regardless of when cash is received or paid.




SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2013

REPORTING THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (Continued)

Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities (Continued)

These two Statements report the School District’s net position and changes in that position. This
change in net position is important because it tells the reader that, for the School District as a
whole, the financial conditions of the School District have improved or diminished. The causes
of this change may be the result of many factors, some financial, and some not. Non-financial
factors include the School District’s property tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting
revenue growth, facility condition, required educational programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the School District is divided
into two distinet kinds of activities: '

s  Governmental Activities — All of the School District’s programs and services are reported
here, including, but not limited to, Instruction, Support Services, Operation and
Maintenance of Plant Facilities, Pupil Transportation and Extracurricular Activities.

» Business-Type Activities — These services are provided on a charge for goods or services
basis to recover all the expense of the goods or services provided. The food services,
preschool, latchkey and adult education program operations are reported as business
activities.

REPORTING THE SCHOOL DISTRICT?’S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS
Fund Financial Statements

Detailed information about the School District’s major funds is presented and an analysis of the
School District’s major funds is included in the 2012-2013 Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report as presented by the School District. The School District uses many funds to account for a
multitude of financial transactions. However, these fund financial statements focus on the School
District’s most significant funds. The School District’s major governmental funds are the
General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Fund and Debt Service Fund.

Governmental Funds

The School District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money
flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the
future years. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial resources that can readily be converted to
cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the School
District’s general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund
information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be
spent in the near future to finance educational programs. The relationship (or differences)
between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.

Enterprise Fund

The Enterprise Fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities; therefore, these
statements are essentially the same.



SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2013

REPORTING THE SCHOOL DISTRICT’S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS (Continued)

Fiduciary Funds

The School District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others. The School
District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used only for their
intended purposes and by those to whom the assets belong. All of the School District’s fiduciary
activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes
in fiduciary net position. We exclude these activities from the district-wide financial statements
because the School District cannot use these assets to finance its operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found following the financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the School District’s budget process. The School
District adopts an annual expenditure budget for the general, special revenue and debt service
funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the general and special revenue
funds as required supplementary information. The required supplementary information can be
found following the notes to the financial statements.

Combining statements and schedules are presented immediately following the major budgetary

comparisons.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Key financial highlights for the fiscal year 2013 are as follows:

The assets and deferred outflows of the South Plainfield Board of Education exceeded its
liabilities and deferred inflows at the close of the fiscal year by $15,873,410 (net
position). The amount available to meet the District’s ongoing obligations (unrestricted
net position) was $3,172,400.

The School District’s total net position increased $1,545,194.

General revenues accounted for $50,015,894 or 81 percent of all revenues. Program
specific revenues in the form of charges for services, operating grants and contributions,
and capital grants accounted for $11,832,407 or 19 percent of total revenues of
$61,848,301.

The School District had $58,230,456 in expenses for governmental activities; only
$9,716,055 of these expenses were offset by program specific charges for services, grants
or contributions. General revenues (primarily property taxes) of $50,015,894 were
adequate to provide for these programs.



SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2013

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGIHTS (Continued)

® The General Fund had $57,162,925 in revenues and $56,923,911 in expenditures. The
General Fund’s balance increased $1,324,562 over the previous year to $6,514,021. Of
this amount, only $52,506 is available for spending at the District’s discretion
{unassigned fund balance).

* The General Fund unassigned budgetary fund balance at the close of the current fiscal
year was $1,052,128 which represented an increase of $70,016 over the previous year.

THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the School District as a

whole.

The following provides a summary of the School District’s Net Position as of 2013 and 2012:
Net Position
As of June 30,2013 and 2012

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Toetal
013 2012 2013 2012 201 012
Current Assets 3 6,883,493 $ 7432350 $ 1,606,256 $ 1,356,288 § 3,489,749 3 8,788,638
Capital Assets 18,086,045 16,862,235 177,265 219,204 18,263,310 17,081,439
Total Assets 24,969,538 24,294,585 1,783,521 1,575,492 26,753,059 23,870,077
Deferred OQutflows of Resources 443,673 540,125 - - 443,673 540,125
Total Assets and Deferred
Qutflows of Resources 25,413,211 24,834,710 1,783,521 1,575,492 27,196,732 26,410,202
Long-Term: Liabilities 10,512,416 11,240,770 10,512,416 11,240,770
Other Liabilities 543,584 738,222 264,081 99,106 807,665 837,328
Fotal Liabilities 11,056,000 11,978,992 264,081 99,106 11,320,081 12,078,098
Deferred Inflows of Resources - - 3,241 3,888 3,241 3,888
Total Liabilities and Deferred
Inflows of Resources 11,056,000 11,978,992 267,322 102,994 11,323,322 12,081,986
Net Postion
Net Investment in Capital Assets 9,033,980 7,082,547 177,265 219,204 19,211,245 7,301,751
Restricted 3,489,765 3,386,689 3,489,765 3,386,689
Unrestricted 1,833,466 2,386,482 1,338,934 1,253,294 3,172,400 3,639,776
Total Net Position $ 14,357,211 $ 12,855,718 § 1,516,199 § 1,472498 % 15,873,410 §$ 14,328,216
|
|
|
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (Continued)

By far the largest portion of the School District’s net position reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land and improvements, buildings and improvements, vehicles, furniture and |
equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The School
District uses these capital assets to provide services to its students; consequently, these assets are
not available for future spending. Although the School District’s investment in its capital assets
is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must
be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate
these liabilities.

The following shows the changes in Net Position for fiscal years 2013 and 2012:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Revenues 2043 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Program Revenues
Charges for Services 5 202,237 § 262,772 § 1,62492%1 % 1,800,982 3§ 1,827,158 $§ 2,063,734
Operating Grants and Contributions 9,491,962 8,503,754 481,431 505,606 9,983,393 9,009,360
Capital Grants and Contributions 21,856 58,154 21,856 58,154
General Revenues .
Property Taxes 42,559,398 41,332,297 42,559,398 41,332 297
Federal and State Aid - Unrestricted 6,610,348 6,330,568 6,616,348 6,330,568
Other 840,148 391,449 - - 840,143 391,449
Total Revenues 59,731,949 56,878,994 2,116,352 2,306,588 61,848,301 59,185,582
Expenses
[nstruction
Regular 25,895,594 24,701,312 25,895,594 24,701,312
Special Education 8,361,993 8,395,082 8,361,993 8,395,082
Other Instruction 1,122,688 1,079,829 ' 1,122,688 1,079,829
School Sponsored Activities and Athietics 1,312,462 1,180,725 1,312,462 1,180,725
Support Services
Student and Instruction Related Services 7,591,031 6,613,391 7,591,031 6,613,391
General Adminisirative Services [,906,861 1,238,685 1,906,861 1,238,685
School Administrative Services 2,937,397 3,380,066 2,937,397 3,380,066
Central and Other Support Services 1,570,824 1,453,287 1,570,824 1453217
Plant Operations and Maintenance 4,775,302 4,504,179 4,775,302 4,504,179
Pupil Transportation 2,377,641 2,316,150 2,377,641 2,316,150
Interest on Long-Term Debt 378,663 393,844 378,663 393,844
Food Services 1,237,900 [,302,832 1,237,900 1,302,832
Preschool Program 267,259 222,473 267,256 222,473
Latchkey Program 396,769 341,000 390,769 341,000
Adult Education Program - - 176,723 193,861 176,723 193,861
Total Expenses 58,230,456 55,256,480 2,072,651 2,060,166 60,303,107 57,316,646
Increase in Net Position 1,501,493 1,622,514 43,701 246,422 1,545,194 1,868,936
Net Position, Begirning of Year 12,855,718 11,233,204 1,472,498 1,226,076 14,328,216 12,459,280
Net Position, End of Year § 14357211 8§ 12,855718 § 1,516,099 § 1472498 § 15873410 3 14,328,216




SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Governmental Activities, The District’s total revenues for governmental activities were
$59,731,949 and $56,878,994 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. Property taxes of
$42,559,358 and $41,332,297 made up 71% and 73% of the revenues for governmental activities for
the South Plainfield Board of Education for fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
Federal, state and local grants and aid accounted for another $16,130,166 and $14,892,476
representing 27% and 26% of total revenues for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.  In addition, tuition, transportation and other miscellaneous income is earned.
Miscellaneous income includes items such as interest, prior year refunds and other miscellaneous
revenue items.

The total cost of all governmental activities programs and services were $58,230,456 and
$55,256,480 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Instruction comprised
$36,692,737 (63%) and $35,356,948 (64%) of District expenses for the fiscal years ended June 30,
2013 and 2012, respectively. Support services totaled $21,159,056 (36%) and $19,505,688 (35%) of
District expense and interest on debt totaled $378,663 (1%) and $393,844 (1%) of District expenses
for fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Total governmental activities revenues exceeded expenses, increasing net position $1,501,493 and
$1,622,514 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and
grants offsetting those services. The following tabie shows the total cost of services and the net cost
of services. The net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the District’s taxpayers by
each of these functions.
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Year Ended June 30, 2013

Governmental Activities (Continued)

Total and Net Cost of Governmental Activities

Total Cost of Net Cost
Services of Services
2013 2012 2013 2012

Instruction

Regular $ 25895594 $ 24,701,312 § 21,968,320 § 21,225,260

Special Education 8,361,993 8,395,082 4,377,162 4,725,604

Other Instruction 1,122,688 1,079,829 646,004 628,060

School Sponsored Activities and Athletics 1,312,462 1,180,725 1,312,462 1,175,725
Support Services

Student and Instruction Related Services 7,591,031 6,613,391 6,980,523 6,033,256

General Administrative Services 1,906,861 1,238,685 1,906,861 1,238,685

School Adminisirative Services 2,937,397 3,380,066 2,629,755 3,058,389

Central and Other Support Services 1,570,824 1,433,217 1,570,824 1,453,217

Plant Operations and Maintenance 4,775,302 4,504,179 4,690,753 4,504,179

Pupil Transportation 2,377,641 2,316,150 2,052,984 1,995,581
Interest on Long-Term Debt 378,663 393,844 378,663 393,844
Total $ 58,230,456 § 55,256,480 $ 48,514,401 § 46,431,800

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and the
interaction between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities, Extracurricular
activities includes expenses related to student activities provided by the School District which are
designed to provide opportunities for students to participate in school events, public events, or a
combination of these for the purposes of motivation, enjoyment and skill improvement.

Student and instruction related services include the activities involved with assisting staff with the
content and process of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development.
Curriculum and staff"development includes expenses related to planning, research, development
and evaluation of support services, as well as the reporting of this information internally and to
the public.

General administration, school administration, central and other support services include
expenses associated with administrative and financial supervision of the District.

Operation and maintenance of facilities activities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings
and equipment in an effective working condition.

Pupil transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from
school, as well as to and from school activities, as provided by state law.

10
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Governmental Activities (Continued)

Interest and fiscal charges involve the transactions associated with the payment of interest and
other related charges on debt of the School District.

Business-Type Activities. Revenues for the District’s business-type activities (food service
program, preschool program, latchkey program or adult education program were comprised
solely of charges for services and federal and state reimbursements in the food service program.

s Enterprise Fund revenues exceeded expenses by $43,701 for the current year and by
$246,422 for the previous year.

e Charges for services were $1,624,921 and $1,800,982 and represents 77% and 78% of the
revenue for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Federal and State
reimbursements were $491,431 and $505,606 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and
2012.

o Expenses were $2,072,651 and $2,060,166 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. This represents amounts paid for salaries, cost of goods and other related
expenses to operate the District’s enterprise funds.

THE SCHOOL DISTRICT’S FUNDS

Information about the School District’s major funds is included in the June 30, 2013
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as presented by the School District. These funds are
accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. All governmental funds (i.e.,
General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects and Debt Service Fund) presented in the
fund-based statements had total revenues of $59,731,949 and $56,878,894 and expenditures of
$60,092,407 and $55,100,854 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this
report, the District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The
following schedules present a summary of the revenues of the General Fund for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the amount and percentage of change in relation to prior-year
revenues.

11
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT’S FUNDS (Continued)

Amount of
Year Ended Year Ended Increase Percent
June 30, 2013 June 36, 2012 (Decrease) Change
Local Sources:
Property Tax Levy $ 41446285 § 40,139,182 § 1,307,103 3%
Transportation Fees 202,237 209,680 (7,443) -49%
Miscellaneous 840,148 444,541 395,607 89%
State Sources , 14,636,382 12,749,877 1,887,005 15%
Federal Sources 37,373 381,101 (343,728) -90%
Total General Fund Revenues $ 57,162,925 $ 53924381 $§ 3,238,544 6%

Overall General Fund revenues increased 6% from the previous year. The change in Local
Sources is attributable to a tax increase of 3% to finance the District’s operating costs. State
sources increased 15% mainly due to the result of an increase in on-behalf contributions made by
the State for the District’s share of teachers’ pension and post retirement medical benefit
contributions. The decrease in Federal sources was due to the discontinuation of the Education
Jobs Program funding received in the prior year.

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund expenditures for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012:

Amount of
Year Ended Year Ended Increase Percent
June 30,2013 June 30, 2012 (Decrease) Change
Instruction $ 34404,836 $ 33,070,296 § 1,334,540 4%
Support Services 19,983,318 18,894,525 1,088,793 6%
Capital Outlay 2,535,757 237415 2,298 342 968%
Total Expenditures $ 56923911 $§ 52,202,236 § 4,721,675 9%

Overall General Fund expenditures increased 9% from the previous year. Major causes of the
increase in the current year were contractual salary increases, employee benefit costs, plant
maintenance and capital outlay project costs. These increases were offset with decreases in the
current year from energy and out of district tuition costs.

12
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THE SCHOOL DISTRICT’S FUNDS (Continued)

For the 2013 school year, General Fund revenues and other financing sources exceeded
expenditures by $1,324,562. Total fund balance increased to $6,514,021 at June 30, 2013. After
deducting fund balances restricted, committed and assigned, the unassigned fund balance
decreased from $69,032 at June 30, 2012 to $52,506 at June 30, 2013. Consequently restricted
fund balances increased $1,351,439 at June 30, 2013,

GENERAL FUND BUDGETING HIGHLIGHTS

The School District’s budget is prepared according to New Jersey law, and is based on accounting
for certain transactions on the budgetary and encumbrance accounting basis. The most significant
budgeted fund is the General Fund.

During the course of the 2013 school year, the School District amended its General Fund budget
as needed. The School District uses program-based budgeting and the budgeting systems are
designed to tightly control total program budgets but provide flexibility for program management.
Transfers from one program to another must be approved by the School Business Administrator,
Superintendent and Board of Education. Transfers were necessitated by:

s Staffing changes based on student needs.
e Need for additional instructional supplies and equipment.
e Changes in appropriations to prevent budget overruns.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, General Fund budgetary revenues and other financing
sources exceeded expenditures increasing budgetary fund balance by $1,411,104 from the
previous year. After deducting fund balances restricted, committed and assigned, the unassigned
budgetary fund balance increased $70,010 from $982,112 at June 30, 2012 to §1,052,128 at June
30, 2013,

CAPITAL ASSETS

At the end of fiscal years 2013 and 2012, the School District had $18,263,310 and $17,081,439
invested in land, land improvements, buildings, machinery and equipment, net of accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation charges for the fiscal years 2013 and 2012 were $1,333,803 and
$1,139,227 for governmental activities, respectively, and $41,939 and $10,828 for business-type
activities, respectively.

Capital Assets at June 30, 2013 and 2012
{Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities
2013 2012 013 2012 2013 2012
Land § 1,265266 § 1,265,266 $ 1,265266 § 1,265,266
Land Improvements 1,121,663 1,218,672 1,121,663 1,218,672
Building and Improvements 13,117,912 12,074,404 13,117,912 12,074,464
Machinery and Equipment 2,581,204 2303,833 8§ 177265 § 219,204 2,758,469 2,523,037
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 18,086,045 § 16,862,235 $§ 177,265 § 219,204 $ 18263310 $ 17,081,439
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

At June 30, 2013, the School District had $10,056,678 as outstanding debt consisting of
$1,016,678 for compensated absences, and $9,040,000 of serial bonds for school construction
projects. The following is a comparison of the June 30, 2013 and 2012 balances:

Outstanding Long-Term Liabilities
At June 30,2013 and 2012

013 201
Bonds Payable b 9,040,000 § 9,765,000
Compensated Absences 1,016,678 920,957
Total $ 10,056,678 $ 10,685,957

FOR THE FUTURE

While many factors influence the School District’s future, the availability of funding for special
education needs, changes in student population and the economy will have the most impact on
educational and fiscal decisions in the future.

Many factors were considered by the School District’s administration during the process of
developing the fiscal year 2013-2014 budget. The primary factors were the District’s projected
student population, anticipated state and federal aid as well as increasing salary and related
benefit costs.

These indicators were considered when adopting the budget for fiscal year 2013-2014. Budgeted
expenditures in the General Fund increased approximately 3 percent to $54,322,717 for fiscal
year 2013-2014.

CONTACTING THE SCHOOL DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the School District’s finances and to show the School District’s
accountability for the funds it receives. If you have questions on this report or need additional
financial information, please contact the School Business Administrator/Board Secretary at South
Plainfield Board of Education, 125 Jackson Avenue, South Plainfield, New Jersey 07080,
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SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2013

EXHIBIT A-1

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,084,608 3 1,421,906 g 4,506,514
Receivables, Net 3,798,885 151,676 3,950,561
Internal Balances - - -
Inventory 32,674 32,674
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 1,265,266 1,265,266
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 16,820,779 177,265 16,998,044
Total Assets 24,969,538 1,783,521 26,753,059
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Charges on Refunding of Debt 443,673 - 443,673
Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources 443,673 - 443,673
Total Assets and Deferred Qutflows of Resources 25,413,211 [,783,521 27,196,732
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities 225,273 264,081 489,354
Payable to Other Governments 24,637 24,637
Unearned Revenue 118,974 118,574
Accrued Interest Payable 174,700 174,700
Nencurrent Liabilities
Due within one year 845,000 845,000
Due beyond one year 9,667,416 - 9,667.416
Total Liabilities 11,056,000 264,081 11,320,081
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Commodities Revenue - 3,241 3,241
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources - 3,241 3,241
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 11,056,000 267,322 11,323,322
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 9,033,980 177,265 9,214,245
Restricted for:
Capital Projects 3,039,696 3,039,696
Plant Maintenance 449 48] 449,481
Debt Service 388 588
Unrestricted 1,833,466 1,338,934 3,172,400
Total Net Position $ 14,357,211 $ 1,516,199 $ 15,873,410

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT B-1
SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
AS OF JUNE 30, 2043

Special Capital Debt Taotal
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents g 3,063,098 % 20,922 - g 588§ 3,084,608
Receivables From Gther Governments 3,605,169 133,716 - - 3,798,885
Total Assets $ 6,728,267 % 154,638 % - 3 588 3% 6,883,493
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 5 214,246  § 3,517 ) 247,763
Payable to State Government 24,637 24,637
Other Liabilities - 7,510 7,510
Unearned Revenue - 118,974 - - 118,974
Total Liabifities 214,246 154,638 - - 368,884
Fund Balances:
Restricted
Capital Reserve 3,039,696 3,039,696
Maintenance Reserve 449 481 449,481
Emergency Reserve 196,533 196,533
Reserved Excess Surplus 906,745 906,745
Reserved Excess Surplus - Designated for
Subsequent Year's Expenditures 775,393 775,393
Debt Service $ 588 588
Comimitted
Year End Encumbrances 204,600 204,600
Insurance Proceeds 24,000 24,000
Assigned
Year End Encumbrances 365,067 365,067
Designated for Subsequent Year's -
Expenditures 500,000 ' 500,000
Unassigned 52,506 - - - 52,506
Total Fund Balances 6,514,021 - - 588 6,514,609
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 3 6,728,267 3 154,638 % - 3 588

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net postion (A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. The cost
of the assets is 344,044,312 and the accumulated depreciation
is $25,958,267. 18,086,045

Amounts resulting from the refunding of debt are reported as deferved
outflows of resources on the statement of net position and amortized
aver the life of the debt. 443,673

The District has financed capital assets through the issuance
of seriai bonds and long-term lease obligations. The interest
accrual at year end is: (174,700)

Loeng-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore ave not reported as
liabilities in the funds

Serial Bonds Payable, Net § 9495738
Compensated Absences 1,016,678
{10,512,416)
Net position of governmental activities $ 143572118

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement
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EXHIBIT B-2

SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

REVENUES

Local Sources:
Property Tax Levy
Transportation Fees
Miscellaneous

Total - Local Sources

State Sources
Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Instruction
Regular
Special Education
Other Instruation
School Sponsored Activities and Athletics
Support Services
Student & [nstruction Related Services
General Administrative Services
School Administrative Services
Central and Other Support Services
Plant Operations and Mainterance
Pupil Transportation
Debt Service
Principal
Interest
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Finanncing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfer In
Operating Transfer Out

Total Other Finanncing Sources (Uses}

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 41,445,285 $ 1,113,113 § 42,559,398
202,237 202,237
840,148 § 30,010 - - 870,158
42,488,670 30,010 - 1,113,113 43,631,793
14,636,882 215,547 14,852,429
37,373 1,210,354 - - 1,247,727
57,162,925 1,455,911 - 1,113,113 59,731,949
25,280,861 124,151 25,405,012
7,056,396 852,303 7,908,699
765,540 355,551 1,121,091
1,302,039 1,302,039
7,257,727 162,050 7,359,777
1,291,734 600,060 1,891,794
2,931,523 2,931,523
1,568,005 1,568,005
4,764,414 4,764,414
2,169,915 2,169,915
725,000 725,000
_ 387,525 387,525
2,535,757 21,856 - - 2,557,613
56,923,911 1,455,911 600,060 1,112,525 60,092,407
239,014 - (600,06G) 588 (360,458)
1,085,548 1,085,548
- - {1,085,548) - (1,085,548)
1,085,548 - (1,085,548} - -
1,324,562 - (1,685,608) 588 (360,458}
5,189,459 - $ 1,685,608 - 6,875,067
3 6,514,021 § - $ - b 588 % 6,514,609
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EXHIBIT B-3

SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (Exhibit B-2) 3 (360,458)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense,
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the period.

Capital Outlays § 2,557,613
Depreciation Expense (1,333,803)
1,223,810
Repayment of debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and is not reported in the statement of activities.
Serial Bonds 725,000
Governmental funds report the effect of premiums and other such items related
to the refunding bonds when they are issued, whereas these amounts are deferred
and amortized in the statement of activities.
Amortization of Deferred Amounts on Refunding (96,432)
Amertization of Bond Premiuim 99,075
2,623
In the statement of activities, interest on long-ierm debt in the statement of activities is accrued, 2
regardless of when due. In the governmental funds, interest is reported when due. The accrued
interest is an addition to the reconciliation.
Decrease in Accrued Interest 6,239
In the statement of activities, certain opetating expenses, €.g., compensated absences (vacations) are
measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the earned amount
exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in the reconciliation {-); when the paid amount
exceeds the earned amount the difference is an addition to the reconciliation (+).
Increase in Compensated Absences 95, 721)
Change in net position of governmental activities (Exhibit A-2) $ 1,501,493

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. |
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EXHIBIT B-4

SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30,2013

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Adult
Food Preschool Latchiey Eduecation
Service Program Program Program Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents § 125,083 % 323,686 § 605637 $ 363,500 § 1,421,906
Intergovernmental Receivable
State 2,708 2,708
Federal 85,727 85,727
Accounts Receivable 55,650 1,075 6,516 63,241
Due from Other Funds - -
Inventories 32,674 - - - 32,674
Total Current Assets 305,842 324,761 612,153 363,500 1,606,256
Capital Assets
Equipment 377,880 57,421 95,200 530,501
Accumuiated Depreciation (322,712) {11,484) (19,040%) - (353,236)
Total Capital Assets, Net 55,168 45,937 76,160 - 177,265
Total Assets $ 361,010 § 370698 § 688313 § 363,500 3 1,783,521
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounis Payable $ 264,081 - $ 264,081
Due to Other Funds -
Unearned Revenue - - - - -
Total Current Liabilities 264,081 - - - 264,681
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Commodities Revenue 3,241 - - - 3,241
Totat Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 267,322 - - - 267,322
NET POSITION
Net Investrment in Capital Assets 55,168 § 45,937 § 76,160 177,265
Unrestricted 38,520 324,761 612,153 § 363,500 1,338,934
Total Net Position 3 93,688 §% 370,698 § 688,313 § 363,500 § 1,516,199

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT B-3

SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPRIETARY FUND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2013

Business-Type Activities

Enterprise Funds
Adult
Food Preschool Latchkey Education
Service Program Program Program Total |
OFERATING REVENUES |
Locat Sources
Daily Sales-Reimbursable Programs
School Lunch Program $ 399,056 $ 399,056
School Breakfast Program 20,189 20,189
Daily Sales Non-Reimbursable Programs 285,735 285,735
Program Fees - 274011 & 421823 § 224107 919,941
Total Operating Revenues 704,980 274,011 421,823 224,107 1,624,921
OPERATING EXPENSES i
Salaries and Benefits 598,163 237,718 330,540 40,500 1,206,921
Cost of Sales 447,040 447,040
Supplies and Materials 74,651 6,594 7,823 1,985 91,053
Management and Administration Fees 61,980 61,980
Other Purchased Services 44 651 11,463 33,366 134,238 223,718
Depreciation 11,415 11,484 19,040 - 41,939
Total Operating Expenses 1,237,900 267,259 390,769 176,723 2,072,651
Operating Income (Loss) - (532,920) 6,752 31,054 47,384 (447,730)
Nonoperating Revenues
State Sources
State School Lunch Program 12,950 12,950
Federal Sources
School Breakfast Program 31,230 31,230
National School Lunch Program 447251 - - - 447,251
Total Nonoperating Revenues 491,431 - - - 491,431
Changes in Net Position (41,489 6,752 31,054 47,384 43,701
Tota! Net Position, Beginning of Year 135,177 363,946 657,259 316,116 1,472,498
Total Net Position, End of Year § 93,688 § 370,698 $ 688313 § 363,500 § 1,516,199

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT B-6
SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Y¥OR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

|
|
Adult I
|

Food Preschool Latchkey Education
Service Program Program Program Total
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Received from Customers $ 704980 $ 273,686 § 425315 % 224,107 % 1,628,088
Cash Payments for Employees
Salaries & Benefits (598,163) (237,718) (330,540) {40,500) (1,206,921}
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods |
and Services (407,896) (18,057) (41,229) (136,223) {603,403)
Net Cash Provided by (Used for} Operating Activities (301,679 17,911 53,546 47,384 {182,238)
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities .
Cash Received from Other Funds 84,350 84.350
Cash Received from State and Federal
Subsidy Reimbursements 442271 - - - 442 271
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital
Financing Activities 526,621 - - - 526,621
Net Increase in Cash and Cash
Equivalents 225,542 17,911 53,546 47,384 344,383
Cash and Cash Equivalents, (Overdrait), Beginning of Year (96,459) 305,775 552,001 316,116 1,077,523
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year § 120083 3% 323686 § 605637 5 363,500 § 1,421,906

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss) § (5329200 § 6,752 % 31,054 3 47,384 3§ {447,730)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (L.oss)
to Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Depreciation 11,415 11,484 19,040 41,939
Non-Cash Federal Assistance-Food Distribution Program 70,439 70,439
Change in Assets and Liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable (5,981) (325) 3,492 (2,814
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable 165,015 {40} 164,975
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory (8,400) {8,400)
Increase/{Decrease) in Deferred Commuodites Revenue (647) - - - {647}
Total Adjustments 231,841 11,159 22,492 - 265,492
Net Cash Provided by/(Used For) Operating Activities 5 (301,079 % 17,911 § 53,546 % 47384 3 (182,238)

Non-Cash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities:
Vatue Received - Food Distribution Program b 69,792

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this staterent.
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EXHIBIT B-7

SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION |
FIDUCIARY FUNDS |
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2013

Trust Fund Agency Fund
ASSETS
Cash and Cashk Equivalents 3 582,161 $ 386,430
Total Assets $ 582,161 $ 386,430
LIABILITIES
Due to Student Groups 99,255
Intergovernmental Accounts Payable 5,329
Payroli Deductions and Withholdings 285,759
Accrued Salaries and Wages - 1,416
Total Liabilities 5,329 3 386,430
NET POSITION
Held in Trust for Unemployment Claims 3 576,832

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Unemployment
Compensation

i
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EXHIBIT B-§

SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF FDUCATION

ADDITIONS
Contributions
District
Employee
Total Contributions

Investment Earnings

Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS
Unemployment Claims

Total Deductions

Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

FIDUCIARY FUNDS -
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2013

Unemployment
Compensation
Trust Fund

b 61,368
48,765

110,133

110,133

47,668

47,668

62,465

514,367

3 576,832

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The South Plainfield Board of Education (the “Board” or the “District™) is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey,
established to function as an education institution. The Board consists of nine elected officials and is responsible for the
fiscal control of the District. A superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of
the District. Under existing statutes, the Board's duties and powers include, but are not limited to, the development and
adoption of a school program; the establishment, organization and operation of schools; and the acquisition, maintenance and
disposition of school property.

The Board aise has broad financial responsibilities, including the approval of the annual budget and the establishment of a
system of accounting and budgetary controls.

The reporting entity is composed of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that are included to
ensure that the financial statements of the District are not misleading. The primary government consists of all funds,
departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from the District. For the South Plainfield Board of Education
this includes general operations, food service, preschool, latchkey and adult education and student related activities of the
District.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially accountable. The District is
financially accountable for an organization if the District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board
and (1) the District is able to significantly influence the programs or services performed or provided by the organization; or
(2) the District is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the organization’s resources; the District is legally obligated or
has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization; or the
District is obligated for the debt of the organization. Component units may also inclade organizations that are fiscally
dependent on the District in that the District approves the budget, the issuance of debt or the levying of taxes. Based on the
foregoing criteria, the District has no component units. Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other reporting
entity as a component unit.

B. New Accounting Standards

During fiscal year 2013, the District adopted the following GASB statements:

e  GASB 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989
FASE and AICPA Pronouncements. The objective of this statement is to incorporate into the GASB’s authoritative
literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in following pronouncements issued
on or before November 30, 1989, which does not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

o  GASB 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net
Position. The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by standardizing the presentation of
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources and their effect on a government’s net position. It
alleviates uncertainty about reporting those financial statement elements by providing guidance where none
previously existed.

e GASB 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, although not required to be implemented until next
year, the District elected to apply the statement to the current vear financial statements. This Statement establishes
accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of
resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of
resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities.
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SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2613

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. New Accounting Standards (Continued)

Other accounting standards that the District is currently reviewing for applicability and potential impact on the financial
statements include:

o  GASB 66, Technical Corrections — 2012, an Amendment of GASB Statements 10 and 62, will be effective beginning
with the year ending June 30, 2014. The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting
for a governmental financial reporting entity by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two
pronouncements, Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions and No. 62,
Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and
AICPA. Pronouncements,

e GASB 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, an Amendment of GASB 23, will be effective beginning with the
year ending June 30, 2014, The objective of this Stafement is to improve financial reporting by state and local
governmental pension plans. This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing
standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-useful information,
supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. This
Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans
and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans and No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pension
plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. The District does
not expect this Statement to impact its financial statements.

o GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, will be effective beginning with the year ending June
30, 2015. The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local
governments for pensions. It also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about
financial support for pensions that is provided by other entities. This Statement replaces the requirements of
Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Govermmental Employers, as well as the
requirements of Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pensions that are provided through pension
plans administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. The District does not expect this
Statement to impact its financial statements.

C. Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both district-wide financial statements (based on the District as a whole) and fund
financial statements (based on specific District activities or objectives). Both the district-wide and fund financial statements
categorize activities as either governmental activities or business-type activities. While separate district-wide and fund
financial statements are presented, they are interrelated. In the district-wide financial statements, the governmental activities
column incorporates data from governmental funds while business-type activities incorporate data from the District’s
enterprise funds. :

The district-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information on
all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Board of Education. All fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund financial
statements. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by property taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. In the statement of net position,
both the governmental and business-type activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b)
reflect on a full accrual economic resource basis, which incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term
debt and obligations.
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SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuned)

C. Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements (Continued)

District-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include 1) charges to customers or other governmental entities, including other school districts, who purchase, use,
or directly benefit from goods or services provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Property taxes, unrestricted
state aid, and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the district-wide financial statements. Exceptions
to this general rule are charges between the Board’s proprietary and fiduciary funds since elimination of these charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. ‘

Fund Financial Statements

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary activities, even though the latter
are excluded from the district-wide financial statements. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major individual
governmental and enterprise funds, each reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. The District considers all of its
governmental and enterprise funds to be major funds.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the School District’s primary operating fund. Tt accounts for all financiai resources of the
District, except those to be accounted for in another fund.

The special revenue fund accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes. This fund accounts for federal, state and local financial programs, with the exception of grants
for major capital projects and the child nutrition programs.

The capital projects fund accounts for the proceeds from the sale of bonds, lease purchases and other revenues used
for the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets, other than those financed by the

proprietary funds,

The debt service fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of principal and interest on
long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

The District reports the following major proprietary funds which are organized to be self-supporting through user charges:

The food service fund accounts for the activities of the school cafeteria, which provides food service to students as
well as a la carte and catering services for teachers and special events.
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-SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements {Continued)

Fund Financial Statements {continued)

The preschool program fund accounts for the activities of the District’s preschdo! program, which provides
preschool aged children (“Future Stars Children™) living within the District instructional programs during the ten
month regular school year.

The latchkey program fund accounts for the activities of the District’s latchkey program, which provides before and
after school child care for students within the District.

The adult education fund accounts for the activities of the District’s adult education program, which offers adult
continuing education and recreational programs throughout the year.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

The fiduciary mrust fund is used to account for resources legally held in trust for the state unemployment insurance
claims, payroll related activities and student related activities which are supported and controlled by student
organizations and clubs. All resources of the fund, including any earnings on invested resources, may be used to
support the intended purpose. There is no requirement that any portion of these resources be preserved as capital.

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year
are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other
funds™ (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due
to/from other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the district-wide financial statements as “internal balances™.

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and basis of
accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current financial resources or
economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the financial
statements,

The district-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements with the exception of the agency fund which
does not have a measurement focus. All assets, al] liabilities and all deferred outflows/inflows of resources associated with
these operations (with the exception of the fiduciary funds) are included on the Statement of Net Position. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardiess of the timing of related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e. when they are both
measurable and available). Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Board considers revenues to be available
if they are collected within 60 days afier year-end. Expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
basis of accounting, with the exception of debt service expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated absences
and claims and judgments which are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other
financing sources.

Property taxes, transportation fees, unrestricted state aid, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Entitlements
(formula-type grants and aid) are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any time
requirements, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source.
Expenditure-driven grants and similar awards (reimbursement-type grants and awards) are recognized as revenue when the
qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements imposed by the grantor or provider have
been met, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source. All other
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the District.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in
both the district-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or
contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Governments also have the option of
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. The Board has elected not to follow private-sector guidance issued subsequent to December 1, 1989,

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the govemment s policy to use restricted resources
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance

1. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investmenis

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments are reported at fair value and are lumited by N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37.
2. Receivables

All recetvables are reported at their gross value, and where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected
fo be uncollectible.
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SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

3. Inventories

The cost of inventories of the governmental fund types are recorded as expenditures at the time individual inventory items
are purchased.

Food Service Fund inventories, exclusive of the federal commodities, are valued at cost, using the first-in first-out (FIFO)
method and consist of food and expendable supplies. The cost of such inventories is recorded as expenses when consumed
rather than when purchased. The United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) commodity portion of the Food Service
Fund inventory consists of food donated by the USDA. It is valued at estimated market prices by the USDA. The amount of
unused commodities at year-end is reported as deferred inflows of resources.

4. Capital Assels

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the district-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Board as assets with an initial,
individual cost of $2,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. The District was able to estimate the historical
cost for the initial reporting of these capital assets through back trending. As the District constructs or acquires additional
capital assets each period, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value
of the asset or materially extend its useful life are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the
construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed,

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other property, plant, and equipment of the District, is
depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Land Improvements ' 10-20
Buildings and Improvements 20-50
Machinery and Equipment 5-10

3. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure)
until then, The government only has one item, which arises only under the accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for
reporting in this category. It is the deferred charges on refunding of debt which results from the loss on a debt refunding
teported in the district-wide statement of net position. A deferred charge on debt refunding results from the loss on the
transaction when the debt’s reacquisition price is greater than the carrying value of the refunded debt. This amount is
deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

5. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Continued)

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position
that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources {revenue)} until that time. The
government has only one type of item, which arises only under the accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in
this category. It is the deferred commodities revenue, reported in both the district-wide and the proprietary funds statements
of net position. The deferred commodities revenue represents the estimated market value of the donated and unused Federal
commodities at year end. This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period the commodities
are consumed,

6. Compensated Absences

It is the District’s policy to permit employees to accumulate (with certain restrictions) earned but unused vacation and sick
leave benefits. A long-term liability of accumulated vacation and sick leave and salary related payments has been recorded
in the governmental activities in the district-wide financial statements, representing the Board’s commitment to fund such
costs from future operations, Proprietary Funds accrue accumulated vacation and sick leave and salary related payments in
the period that they are earned. A liability is reported in the governmental funds only to the amount actually due at year end
as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

7. Long-Term Obligations

In the district-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund type statement of net position. Gains resulting from debt refundings are classified as deferred inflows of
resources and losses are reported as deferred outflows or resources. Bond premiums and discounts, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Gains and losses resulting from debt refundings are
also deferred and amortized over the life of the refunded bonds or new bonds whichever is less using the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs (other than for
prepaid insurance) are treated as an expense.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance
costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources, Premiums received
on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing
uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

8. Net Position/Fund Balance

District-Wide Statements

In the district-wide statements, there are three classes of net position:
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

8. Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

District-Wide Statements (Continued)

s Net investment in capital assets — consists of net capital assets (cost less accumulated depreciation) reduced by
outstanding balances of related debt obligations from the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources aitributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets or related debt also should be included.

* Restricted net position — reports net position when constraints placed on the residual amount of noncapital assets
are either externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, confributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

e Unrestricted net position — any portion of net position not already classified as either net investment in capital
assets or net position — restricted is classified as net position — unrestricted.

Governmenial Fund Statements

Fund balance categories are designed to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on the District’s fund balance
more transparent. These categories are comprised of a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound
to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds.

Restricted Fund Balance — Amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors, bondholders, and
higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.

Capital Reserve — This restriction was created by the District in accordance with NJAC 6A:23A-14.1 to fund future
capital expenditures (See Note 2C.)

Maintenance Reserve — This restriction was created by the Board in accordance with NJAC 6A:23A-14.2 to
accumulate funds for the required maintenance of school facilities in accordance with the EFCA (NJSA 18A:7G-9)
for a thorough and efficient education.

Emergency Reserve — This restriction was created in accordance with NJAC 6A:23A-14.4(A)1 to accumulate funds in
accordance with State statute to finance unanticipated general fund expenditures required for a thorough and efficient
education.

Reserved Excess Surplus — This restriction was created in accordance with NJSA 18A:7F-7 to represent the June 30,
2013 audited excess surplus that is required to be appropriated in the 2014/2015 original budget certified for taxes.

Reserved FExcess Surplus — Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures - This restriction was created in
accordance with NJSA 18A:7F-7 to represent the June 30, 2012 audited excess surplus that was appropriated in the
2013/2014 original budget certified for taxes.

Debt Service - Represents fund balance restricted specifically for the repayment of long-term debt principal and interest
in the Debt Service Fund.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

8. Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

Governmental Fund Statements (Continued)

Committed Fund Balance — Amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using its highest level of
decision-making authority; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
government takes the same highest level action to remove or change the constraint.

Year-End Encumbrances — Represents outstanding purchase orders at year end for contracts awarded by formal action of
the Board of Trustee’s for specific purposes from available resources of the current year for which the goods and
materials have not yet been received or the services have not yet been rendered at June 30.

Insurance Proceeds — Represents funds received for damage incurred as a result of Hurricane Sandy whereby
replacement items have not yet been purchased as of June 30.

Assigned Fund Balance — Amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be expressed by the
governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates the authority.

Year-End Encumbrances — Represent outstanding purchase orders for goods or services approved by management for
specific purposes from available resources of the current year for which the goods and materials have not yet been
received or the services have not yet been rendered at June 30.

Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures — This designation was created to dedicate the portion of fund balance
appropriated in the adopted 2013/2014 District budget certified for taxes.

Unassigned Fund Balance — Represents fund balance that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific
purposes within the governmental funds.

9. Reclassifications

Certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year’s
presentation.

F. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

1. Program Revenues

Amounts reported as program revenues in the district-wide statement of activities include 1) charges to customers or
applicants for goods or services, provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all property taxes, unrestricted state aid, investment earnings and miscellaneous revenues.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

F. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses (Continued)

2. Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied pursuant to law and are collected by the municipality and are transferred to the District as
requested. Property tax revenue is recognized in the year they are levied and become available. Property taxes collected in
advance of the year-end for which they are levied and fransferred to the District are reported as deferred inflows of
resources. The tax bills are mailed annually in June by the municipal tax collector and are levied and due in four quarterty
installments on August 1, November 1, February 1 and May 1 of the fiscal year. When unpaid, taxes or any other municipal
lien, or part thereof, on real property, remains in arrears on April 1% in the year following the calendar year levy when the
same became in arrears, the tax collector of the municipality shall, subject to the provisions of New Jersey Statute, enforce
the lien by placing the property on a tax sale. The municipality may institute annual “in rem” tax foreclosure proceedings to
enforce the tax collection or acquisition of title to the property.

3. Tuition Revenues and Expenditures

Tuition Revenues - Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The charges are
subject to adjustment when the final costs are determined and certified by the State Department of Education.

Tuition Expenditures - Tuition charges for the fiscal years 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 were based on rates established by the
receiving district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been certified by the State Department of
Education.

4. Proprietary Funds, Operating and Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the food service enterprise fund, of the preschool,
latchkey and adult education enterprise funds, are charges to customers for sales and services, Operating expenses for
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. Federal and State
subsidies for the food service operation are considered nonoperating revenues.

NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A, Budgeiarv Information

In accordance with the requirements of the New Jersey Department of Education (“the Department™), the District annually
prepares its operating budget for the forthcoming year. The budget, except for the general fund and special revenue fund,
which is more fully explained below and in the notes to the required supplementary information, is prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and serves as a formal plan for expenditures
and the proposed means for financing them.
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NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

A. Budgetary Information (Continued)

The annual budget is adopted in the spring of the preceding year for the general, special revenue and debt service funds. The
District is not required to adopt an annual budget for the capital projects fund. The budget is submitted to the county
superintendent for review and approval prior to adoption. Prior to the 2012/2013 budget year, the annual budget was
required to be voted upon at the annual school election held on the third Tuesday in April. On January 17, 2012, Chapter
202 of the Laws of P.L. 2011 was approved which established procedures for moving the date of a school district’s annual
school election from April to the general election in November. Under the new law, districts that have their school board
members elected in November no longer have to submit their budgets that meet levy cap requirements for voter approval
beginning with the 2012/2013 budget year. Only a school board decision to exceed the tax levy cap would require voter
approval for the additional amount on the November ballot. On January 18, 2012, the Board adopted a resolution to move its
annual election to the date of the general elections in accordance with the law; therefore voter approval of the annual budget
is not required.

Budget adoptions and amendments are recorded in the District's board minutes. The budget is amended by the Board of
Trustees as needed throughout the year. The budget for revenues, other resources, other uses, and fund balances is prepared
by fund source and amount. The budget for expenditures is prepared by fund, program, function, object and amount. The
legal level of budgetary control is established at the line item account within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as
the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C.
6:20-2A.2(m)1. The Board approved several budget transfers during 2012/2013. During 2012/2013 the Board increased the
original budget by $1,820,019. The increase was funded by additional surplus appropriated, grant awards and the
reappropriation of prior year general fund encumbrances. During the fiscal year authorized and approved additional fund
balance appropriations of $697,452 were made from capital reserve in the general fund.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the year. For
governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of certain
state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the treatment of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described
in the Notes to Required Supplementary Information (RSI). Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of
formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in the governmental funds. Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders,
contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable
appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds other than the special revenue fund are reported as committed
and/or assigned fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or labilities but rather commitments
related to unperformed contracts for goods and services which are reappropriated and honored during the subsequent fiscal
year,

C. Capital Reserve

A capital reserve account was established by the District on June 18, 2008. The accumulation of funds will be used for
capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve is maintained in the general fund and its activity
is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve are restricted to capital projects in the district’s approved Long Range Facilities Plan
(LRI'P). Upon submission of the LRFP to the Department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve by
appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end of any
unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts or both. A district may also appropriate additional
amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a
special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2, Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6:23A-
14.1(g), the balance in the reserve cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its
approved LRFP,
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NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

C. Capital Reserve (Continued)

The activity of the capital reserve for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 is as follows:

Balance, July [, 2012 $ 1,251,600
Increased by:
Transferred from Capital Projects Fund $ 1,085,548
Deposits Approved by Board Resolution 1,400,000
2,485,548
3,737,148
Withdrawals
Approved by Board Resolution 697,452
Balance, June 30, 2013 S 3,039,696

D. Transfers to Capital Qutlay

During the 2012/2013 school year, the district transferred $880,984 to the non-equipment capital outlay accounts. The
transfers were made from the capital reserve and other available budget line account balances to supplement capital projects
approved by the Board in the original budget certified for taxes.

E. Calculation of Excess Surplus

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended, the restricted fund balance for Reserved Excess Surplus is a required
calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA).
New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund fund balance in excess of 2% of budget expenditures at
the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their
subsequent year’s budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2013 is $1,682,138. Of this amount, $775,393 was
designated and appropriated in the 2013/2014 original budget certified for taxes and the remaining amount of $906,745
will be appropriated in the 2014/2015 original budget certified for taxes.
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A. Cash Deposits and Investments

Cash Deposits

The Board's deposits are insured through either the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), Securities Investor
Protection Corporation (SIPC) or New Jersey's Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). The Board is required
to deposit their funds in a depository which is protecting such funds pursuant to GUDPA. The New Jersey Governmental
Unit Deposit Protection Act requires all banks doing business in the State of New Jersey to pledge collateral equal to at least
5% of the average amount of its public deposits and 100% of the average amount of its public funds in excess of the lesser of
75% of its capital funds or $200 million for all depesits not covered by the FDIC,

Bank balances for interest bearing accounts are insured up to $250,000 in the aggregate by the FDIC for each bank. Under
the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, temporary unlimited deposit insurance coverage was
provided for non-interest bearing accounts from December 31, 2010 through December 31, 2012. SIPC replaces cash claims
up to a maximum of $250,000 for each failed brokerage firm. At June 30, 2013, the book value of the Board's deposits were
$5,475,105 and bank and brokerage firm balances of the Board’s deposits amounted to $7,224,254,  The Board's deposits
which are displayed on the various fund balance sheets as "cash" or “cash and cash equivalents” are categorized as:

Bank
Depository Account Balance
Insured b 7,224,254

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s
deposits may not be returned to it. The Board does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2013 none
of the Board’s bank balances were exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

As of June 30, 2013, the Board had no outstanding investments.

Interest Rate Risk — The Beard does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk — State law limits investments as noted above (N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37). The District does not have an
investment policy that would further limit its investment choices.

Concentration of Credit Risk — The Board places no limit in the amount the District may invest in any one issuer.

Investment and interest earnings in the Capital Projects Fund are assigned to the General Fund in accordance with Board
policy.
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
B. Receivables

Receivables as of June 30, 2013 for the district’s individual major funds in the aggregate, including the applicable
allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Special Food Preschool Latchkey
General Revenue Service Program Program Total
Receivables: '
Intergovernmental:
Local $ 3,546,627 3§ 7,116 § 3,553,743
State 117,688 - 5 2,708 120,396
Federal 854 126,600 85,727 213,181
Accounts - - 55,650 % 1,075 § 6,516 63,241
Gross Receivables 3,665,169 133,716 144,085 1,075 6,516 3,950,561
Less: Allowance for
Uncollectibles - - - - - -
Net Total Receivables $ 3665169 § 133716 $§ 144085 % 1,075 § 6,516 $§ 3,950,561

C. Unearned Revenue

Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds
were as follows:

Total
Special Revenue Fund
Unencumbered Grant Draw Downs $ 108,447
Grant Draw Downs Reserved for Encumbrances 10,527
$ 118,974
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

D. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated.
Land

Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated;
Buildings and Improvements

Land Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings and Improvements

Land Improvements
Machinery and Equipment

Total Accumnulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net

Balance, Balance,
July 1, 2012 Increases Decreases June 30, 2013
(As Restated)

$ 1,265,266 - - $ 1,265,266
1,265,266 - - 1,265,206
31,730,068 1,775,905 33,505,973
2,858,387 2,858,387
5,632,978 781,708 - 6,414,686
40,221,433 2,557,613 - 42,779,046

(19,655,604} (732,457) (20,388,061)

{1,639,715) {97,009) (1,736,724)
(3,329,145) {504,337) - (3,833,482)
(24,624,464) (1,333,803) - (25,958,267)
15,596,969 1,223,810 - 16,820,779

$ 16,862,235 § 1,223,810 $ - $ 18,086,045

40



SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2013

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

D. Capital Assets (Continued)

Balance, Balance,
July 1, 2012 Increases Decreases  June 30, 2013
Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:

Machinery and Equipment $ 530,501 § - - $ 530,501
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 530,501 - - 330,501
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Machinery and Equipment (311,297) (41,939} - (353,236)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (311,297) (41,939) - (353,236}
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 219,204 (41,939) - 177,265
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net b 219204 § (41,939) § - b 177,263

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the District as follows:
Governmental Activities:
Instruction

Regular $ 440,356

Special 440,356

School Sponsored Activities and Athletics 7,774
Total Instruction 388,486
Support Services

Student and Instruction Related 217,045

General Administration 13,963

Operations and Maintenance of Plant 9,507

Student Transportation 204,402
Total Support Services 445,317

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:
Food Service Fund

Preschool Fund
Latchkey Fund

Food Service Fund
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

D. Capital Assets (Continued)

Construction and Other Significant Commitments

The District has the following active construction projects at June 30, 2013 as follows:

Remaining
Purposes Commitment
High School Gym Floor Replacement $ 204,600

Agset Impairment and Insurance Proceeds

Insurance Proceeds

The District had insurance policies in effect at the time of the hurricane for comprehensive property damage (including
flood), casualty, business interruption and other coverages. As of June 30, 2013, the insurers have remitted $99,384.
These funds are recorded as revenue in the General Fund as of June 30, 2013. A portion of these funds have been
committed by the District to be used for the replacement of equipment destroyed by the hurricane damage. As of June
30, 2013, $24,000 of the proceeds are unspent and have been reported as Committed Fund Balance as the District has
constrained these funds to be used to replace the items specified in the insurance claim. The District estimates that a
significant portion of the hurricane related losses will be covered through grants from the Federal Emergency
Management Association (FEMA), potential grants from other Federal and/or State agencies and through additional
insurance recoveries.

E. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

There were no interfund balances as of June 30, 2013,

Interfund Transfers

Transfer In:
General
Fund
Transfer Out:
Capital Projects Fund $ 1,085,548

The above transfer is the result of the local share of unspent Capital Project Fund appropriations due back to the General
Fund.
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F. Leases

Operating Leases

The District leases copiers under noncancelable operating leases. Lease payments for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
were $§11,267. The future minimum lease payments for these operating leases are as follows:

Fiscal
Year Ending June 30 Amount
2014 $ 11,267
2015 11,267
2016 11,267
2017 6,686
Total $ 40,487

G. Long-Term Debt

General Obligation Bonds

The Board issued general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities
and other capital assets. The full faith and credit of the Board are irrevocably pledged for the payment of the principal of
the bonds and the interest thereon.

Bonds payable at June 30, 2013 are comprised of the following issues:

$9,765,000, 2009 Refunding Bonds, due in annual

installments of $845,000 to $1,195,000

through July 15, 2021, interest at 2.00% to 5.00% $9.040.,000

The Board's schedule of principal and interest for long-term debt issued and outstanding is as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Year Ended Serial Bonds
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2014 845,000 372,612 $ 1,217,612
2015 870,000 346,562 1,216,562
2016 910,000 308,588 1,218,588
2017 960,000 264,238 1,224,238
2018 995,000 225,287 1,220,287
2019-2022 4,460,000 447,406 4,907,406
$ 9,040,000 § 1,964,693 $ 11,004,693
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

G. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Statutory Borrowing Power

The Board's remaining borrowing power under N.J.S. 18A:24-19, as amended, at June 30, 2013 was as follows:

4% of Equalized Valuation Basis (Municipal) $ 155,468,274
Less: Net Debt 9,040,000
Remaining Borrowing Power $ 146,428,274

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows:

Balance, Due

July 1, 2011 Balance, Within

{As Restated) Additions Reductions June 30, 2013 One Year
Governmental Activities:
Serial Bonds Payable b 9,765,000 b 725,000 3 0,040,000 § 845,000
Add: Premium 554,813 - 99,075 455,738 -
Total Bonds Payable 10,319,813 - 824,075 9,495 738 -
Compensated Absences 920,957 § 95,721 - 1,016,678 -

Governmental Activity
Long-Term Liabilities $ 11,240,770 § 95,721 § 824,075 & 10,512,416 § -

For the governmental activities, the liabilities for corpensated absences, are generally liquidated by the general fund.
NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION

A. Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to property, general liability, automobile coverage, theft of, damage to
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; student accident; termination of employees and
natural disasters, The Board has obtained commercial insurance coverage to guard against these events to minimize the
exposure to the District should they occur. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the statistical section
of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

A. Risk Management (Continued)

The District is a member of the New Jersey School Board Insurance Group (NJSBAIG or Group). The Group is a risk
sharing public entity pool, established for the purpose of insuring against worker's compensation claims.

The relationship between the Board and the Group is governed by a contract and by-laws that have been adopted by
resolution of each unit's governing body. The Board is contractually obligated to make all annual and supplementary
contributions to the Group, to report claims on a timely basis, cooperate with the management of the Group, its claims
administrator and attorneys in claims investigation and settlement, and to follow risk management procedures as outlined by
the Group. Members have a contractual obligation to fund any deficit of the Group attributable to a membership year during
which they were a member.,

NJSBAIG provides its members with risk management services, including the defense of and settlement of claims and to
establish reasonable and necessary loss reduction and prevention procedures to be followed by the members. Complete
financial statements of the insurance fund are on file with the School's Business Administrator.

There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year nor have there been any settlements in
excess of insurance coverage’s in any of the prior three years.

The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit Reimbursement
Method”. Under this plan the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid
to its former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the
State. The following is a summary of District contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for
benefits paid and the ending balance of the District’s fiduciary trust fund for the current and previous two years:

Year Ended District Employee Amount Ending

June 30 Contributions Contributions Reimbursed Balance
2013 $ 61,368 $ 48,765 $ 47,668 b 576,832
2012 594,666 65,302 313,988 514,367
2011 172,215 51,291 250,436 168,112

B. Contingent Liabilities

The District is a party defendant in some lawsuits, none of a kind unusual for a school district of its size and scope of
operation, In the opinion of the Board's Attorney the potential claims against the District not covered by insurance policies
would not materially affect the financial condition of the District.
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

B. Contingent Liabilities (Continued)

Federal and State Awards — The Board participates in a number of federal and state programs that are fully or partially
funded by grants received from other governmental units. Expenditures financed by grants are subject to audit by the
appropriate grantor government. If expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with grant program regulations, the
Board may be required to reimburse the grantor government. As of June 30, 2013, significant amounts of grant expenditures
have not been audited by the various grantor agencies but the Board believes that disallowed expenditures, if any, based on
subsequent audits will not have a material effect on any of the individual governmental funds or the overall financial position
of the District.

C. Federal Arbitrage Regulations

The District is subject to Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code as it pertains to the arbitrage rebate on all tax-exempt
obligations, both long and short-term debt. Under the 1986 Tax Reform Act, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) required
that all excess earnings from investment proceeds be rebated to the IRS. Arbitrage, for purposes of these regulations, is
defined as the difference between the yield on the investment and the vield on the obligations issued. If there are excess
earnings, this amount may be required to be rebated to the IRS. At June 30, 2013, the District has not estimated its arbitrage
earnings due to the IRS, if any. '

D. Emplovee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following contributory defined benefit public employee retirement
systems (retirement systems) covering substantially all eligible Board employees:

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) — Established in January 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to
provide coverage, including post-retirement health care, to substantially all full time employees of the State or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency provided the employee is not a member of another State-administered
retirement system. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 10 years of service for pension
benefits and 25 years for post-retirement health care coverage.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) — Established in January 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to

provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full time certified teachers or professional staff of

the public school systems in the State. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 10 years of
service for pension benefits and 25 years for post-retirement health care coverage.

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following defined contribution public employee retirement
program covering certain state and local government employees which include those Board employees who are eligible
for pension coverage.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) - established under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and

Chapter 103, P.L. 2008 to provide coverage to elected and certain appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007.
Membership is mandatory for such individuals with vesting occurring after one (1) year of membership.

46




SOUTH PLAINFIELD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (Continaed)

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Other Pension Funds

The State established and administers a Supplemental Annuity Collective Trust Fund (SACT) which is available to active
members of the State-administered retirement systems to purchase annuities to supplement the guaranteed benefits provided
by their retirement system. The state or local government employers do not appropriate funds to SACT.

The cost of living increase for PERS and TPAF, are funded directly by each of the respective systems and are considered in
the annual actuarial calculation of the required State contribution for the system.

According to state law, all obligations of each retirement system will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should any
retirement system be terminated.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly available financial
reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of each of the above systems. The
financial reports may be accessed via the New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website at
www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the retirement systems are prepared on the accrual bas